Present Simple

All verbs (not ‘to be’)

We use this when we want to explain what happens regularly, or to describe something which is always true.
He drinks water.





At night people sleep
I like spaghetti.





The Infinitive
In English, the infinitive has two words, one of them is always TO.

to eat





to learn


to drink




to laugh


In the present simple, we don’t use TO.

For example:

I eat pizza



I to eat pizza

is wrong.
The verb doesn’t change. Take away the TO and add the subject. So:

I eat


you eat


we eat


they eat

For the third person singular, add S

He / she / it eats
Negative
Here, we need an auxiliary verb, a help verb. This is always to do (not for the verb to be). It goes after the subject. 
I don’t eat




For the third person singular, change the auxiliary verb and not the verb:

She doesn’t eat



She don’t eats



Interrogative (questions)
Use the auxiliary verb, but change the order.
Do you eat?





Does she eat?


Word Order 

To make questions, it is very important to remember this

Question word
Auxiliary

Subject

INFINITIVE

Where


do


you


live


?

Why


does


he


want

to go
?

yes/no questions have no question word




Do


you


speak

English?

To make the past simple, change
 do / does

to

did 

When


did


you


arrive


?
To be

We use this verb with adjectives and nouns. This verb is not for actions.
I am English

He is French.

She is a teacher.

Negative
There is no auxiliary verb, we use NOT
I am not Spanish

Questions

Again, there is no auxiliary verb, but we change the order of the words
You are
Are you?

He is

Is he?

Question words come first, but there is NO auxiliary verb and NO infinitive

Where 
are

you

?

Why

is

he

late?

To make the past change the verb to was/were
